
 
 

Park County Commission Meeting Minutes 
Week of September 12 – 16, 2011 

Park County, Montana 
 

 
 
September 12, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@8:57:44 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; and 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. floodplain administration 
• Memo email re. Community Development Director out of office schedule 
• Memo email re. Community Development Director instruction to staff regarding 

communication with planning board members 
• Memo email re. September Shamrock Lane millings application 
• Memo email re. citizen complaint against rafting company 
• Memo email re. Parks and Recreation, Fair and Museum boards open seats 

advertisement 
• Memo email re. HUD funding cuts 
• Memo email re. September 29 East Boulder Mine tour  

 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said she provided a copy of a Fleshman 
Creek Restoration Project RFQ to each commissioner and the Community Development 
Director.  The commissioner said they are ready to put the RFQ out for bid. 
 
@9:07:52 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 12, 2011 
Discussion of Adopting a Revised Pay Scale for FY2012 
 
@9:41:33 a.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Durgan recessed the meeting until 10:30 a.m. when a quorum of 
commissioners is present.  @10:30:59 a.m., Chairman Taylor reopened the meeting.  

Week of 9/12/11 Page 1 of 12 



Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present were Jill Ouellette, HR; 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Martha Miller, auditor; Lani Hartung, 
finance; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss adoption of a revised pay scale for Fiscal Year 
2012. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette said the county has been operating with 
antiquated salary ranges, some employees currently earn hourly wages exceeding their 
pay grades and some department heads are requesting increases for staff that exceed pay 
grades.  Ouellette said employees should generally be earning pay scale mid-point wages 
after three years in the same position.  She said it has been Park County’s practice to start 
employees at the low end of the pay scale. 
 
Ouellette provided potential and a proposed pay scale increase and affect such increases 
would have on the county’s budget.  Ouellette said her proposed pay scale is five percent 
above Fiscal Year 2005 wages.  
 
Commissioner Durgan said Ouellette’s figures are a good start and it seems the county 
needs to have more discussion if employee wages are already exceeding pay scales.  
Commissioner Taylor said he would like Ouellette to work on wages for Road 
Department employees so they are not so far outside of their pay grades.  
 
Ouellette said she will provide another proposal for a second discussion meeting on the 
issue.  
 
@10:56:52 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 12, 2011 
Discussion/Signing of Resolution to Amend Pay Grade for GIS Temporary Employee for 
Election Redistricting Project 
 
@11:04:17 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present were Jill 
Ouellette, HR; Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Erica Hoffman, GIS; Lani 
Hartung, finance; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider signing a resolution to amend the pay grade for a 
GIS temporary employee for an election redistricting project. 
 
GIS/IT Manager Erica Hoffman said she would like to pay a temporary GIS employee to 
be hired for a temporary election redistricting project more than $12.00 per hour, which is 
the wage at which a temporary GIS position previously topped out.  Hoffman said she 
does not have time to conduct baseline training, so a person with experience will need to 
be hired, thus justifying the higher pay scale. 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 2 of 12 



 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette said Hoffman does not have time to supervise 
the work of the position in question, and a previous GIS temporary position was rated as 
a Pay Grade 8.  She said most jobs with the requested duties range from $14.67 to $24.45 
per hour.  Ouellette said she feels the position should be classified as a Pay Grade 15 
through her research, with Hoffman hoping to pay the hired individual up to $13.50 an 
hour.  
 
Commissioner Durgan said he would be interested in knowing how many applications 
would be received for the position with a pay Grade 15.  He said the position may not 
garner many applications in a good economy at that grade.  
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to accept the recommendation from GIS and sign 
Resolution #1116 amending the GIS temporary position salary grade from Grade 8 to 
Grade 15.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@11:17:11 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 12, 2011 
Review of Minutes for Week of September 5, 2011  
 
@1:02:10 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present was Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to approve Commission meeting minutes for the Week of 
September 5, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Durgan requested a revision to Page 1 of 10, noting a correction to the 
acronym “CEDS” grant.  On Page 4 of 11, Durgan noted he attended a Park County 
Stockgrower’s Association meeting. 
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to approve the minutes with corrections.  Commissioner 
Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@1:05:06 p.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 12, 2011 
 
3:00 P.M. – Angel Line Board – West Room – Commissioner Taylor attended 
 
3:00 P.M. – Local Advisory Committee – East Room 
 
 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 3 of 12 



September 13, 2011 
 
7:30 A.M. – Job Service Employers Committee – Job Service, Livingston – Commissioner 
Malone attended 
 
September 13, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@9:01:16 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Ed Hillman, road; Jill Ouellette, HR; and Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo document re. county floodplain administration letter 
• Memo email re. YNP Highway 212 carcass agreement follow-up 
• Memo document re. FEMA floodplain management measures insurance program 

final draft 
• Memo email re. EDD board recommended memberships 
• Memo email re. SWB agenda 
• Memo email re. wildfire updates 
• Memo email re. director of environmental health RFQ contact 
• Memo email re. school grant letter of support request  

 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette provided the Commission with a job posting for 
a re-districting project employee.  
 
Commissioner Malone reported on a September 12 tour of the Boulder River Road with 
Sweet Grass County commissioners to discuss maintenance repair issues.  Malone said 
the contract will be let by Park County.  
 
@9:20:38 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 13, 2011 
County Road/Engineering Services Updates  
 
@9:31:10 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Ed Hillman, road; Mark Westenskow, CTA Engineering; and Minutes Clerk John 
Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 4 of 12 



The meeting was scheduled to discuss county road issues and updates on engineering 
services. 
 
Mark Westenskow of CTA Engineering said CTA went to White Lane to review an area 
where water ponds near a citizen’s garage.  Westenskow said he suspects a low spot has 
been compacted over time disenabling water to percolate or drain during high water.  He 
said CTA is proposing a vertical dry well at the location to enable gravels to drain 
ponding water during meltoff or high water events.  Westenskow provided the 
Commission with a sketch and cost estimate for proposed work. 
  
Westenskow said he took shots on Trail Creek Road with a citizen, Montana FWP and a 
representative from the conservation district to discuss a culvert issue where Morrison 
Creek crosses Trail Creek Road.  He provided the Commission with a report for a larger 
culvert installed at a lower elevation in the creek channel, which is preferred by FWP.  
 
@10:03:51 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 13, 2011 
 
10:00 A.M. – Personnel Meeting – Commission Chambers – Canceled  
 
10:30 A.M. – Personnel Meeting – Commission Chambers – Canceled  
 
1:00 P.M. – MACo Healthcare Trust Meeting – Billings Hotel and Convention Center – 
Commissioner Malone attended 
 
1:00 P.M. – Senior Citizens Meeting – Livingston Senior Center 
 
2:00 P.M. – I.T. Advisory Committee – Community Room 
 
September 14, 2011 
 
8:00 A.M. – Montana Association of Counties Workshops – Billings – Commissioner 
Malone attended 
 
September 14, 2011 
Consideration/Decision on Separating Functions of Community Economic Development 
and Planning Offices 
 
@10:35:10 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present were Brett 
Linneweber, county attorney; Mike Inman, community development; Jill Ouellette, HR; 
Martha Miller, auditor; Lani Hartung, finance; Peter Fox, planning board; Philip Fletcher, 
community development; Catherine Fletcher, citizen; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  
No public comment made. 
 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 5 of 12 



The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on separating functions of the 
Community Economic Development and Planning Offices. 
 
Commissioner Taylor said the meeting is not a personnel meeting.   
 
Taylor opened the floor to public comment.  Peter Fox, planning and community 
development board, said the chairman and vice-chairman of the Planning and 
Development Board asked him to convey a concern the planning board has not been 
approached for any input on a decision on the topic of discussion and the board is ready, 
willing and able to participate in any discussion or provide any input the Commission 
would care to have.  Fox said Commissioner Malone mentioned to the board a month and 
a half ago he would like to schedule a time for discussion between the board and the 
Commission, but that did not occur.  Taylor asked if Malone was referring to the issues to 
be discussed at the present meeting.  Fox said his best recollection is the meeting was to 
be a venue for the board’s impression of the general workings of the staff and board 
members’ perceptions of the workings of the department.   
 
Taylor said the present meeting concerns the Commission’s sentiments that it is in the 
best interest of the county to separate the Community Development Department’s 
functions, as the Commission is looking for more efficiency and accountability from that 
department.  Taylor said the Commission believes planning should be a separate function 
and that entity will be physically separated, as Taylor will move out of his current office 
and into the planning department and Community Development Director Philip Fletcher 
may have Taylor’s old office.  He said the move involves no promotions or demotions 
and no new hires.  Taylor said no individual in either office will supervise anyone, as 
now each employee will report directly to the Commission and the employees can see the 
Commission to determine how things will be handled regarding any overlap between the 
offices on pending projects.  Taylor said that arrangement is an administrative function so 
no meetings are necessary to make the decision.  Taylor said the Commission will require 
employees in both offices to track work being done on a daily basis and provide it to the 
Commission, including documenting upcoming projects and keeping the Commission in 
the loop as the new split duties arrangement progresses.  Taylor said the purpose of 
having daily documentation is for the Commission to evaluate how things are going and 
what future structure needs to be put into place.  Taylor said the Commission feels it 
would be good for everyone involved at this time for the functioning of the planning and 
community economic development to be split.  He said such is what the Commission has 
discussed and what it plans to do today. 
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to separate the functions and the location of community 
and economic development from the planning office.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the 
motion.   
 
In discussion, County Attorney Brett Linneweber said the Commission cannot discuss on 
record or allow any other meeting attendee to discuss on record any personnel issues that 
may violate an individual’s privacy rights, per MACo’s very firm stance.  Linneweber 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 6 of 12 



said he understands the Commission received information in a document that could 
violate the privacy rights of individuals present at the current meeting.  
 
Finance Director Lani Hartung asked if there will be any budget changes and whether the 
commissioners will directly approve claims and expenditures.  Taylor said such is not for 
decision at this meeting and will be worked out at a later date. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette said she is a proponent of providing separate 
budgetary lines if such makes it is cleaner or clearer with the two factions separated. 
 
Fletcher said the last two minutes is the first time he heard anything of what the current 
meeting is about.  He said he has been told at various times that it is about different 
things than what Taylor just described.  Fletcher said the record should note he is one of 
the few people in the room who had no idea what the meeting was going to be about, and 
he is the department head.  Fletcher said he objects to the meeting’s title in that it states 
taking community economic development away from planning, which is very different 
than saying taking community development away.  He said he assumed the meeting 
would contain discussion about the economic development district hiring an economic 
development planner so his work as an economic development planner would essentially 
be removed.  Fletcher said he submitted a note that stated he had no notice of what the 
current meeting was about and he objects to the proceedings for the fact he has been kept 
in the dark.  He said he objects to the fact there were no complaints, grievances or 
discussions, as the meeting is not a personnel meeting.  He said part of what has come up 
is his health, but he is not allowed to talk about personnel issues or Linneweber’s 
involvement in messing up his department.  He said he objects to not knowing what the 
current meeting is about, and the way that it has been structured prohibits him from 
saying anything about it because everything he has to say is contextual.  Linneweber told 
Fletcher that the Commission has a document containing personnel information that 
Fletcher provided, but the Commission will not enter content of that document into the 
public record and the content will remain confidential. 
 
Fletcher said the record should note it has been stated the current meeting is not a 
personnel meeting and what he was going to introduce does not deal with personnel but 
deals with the functioning of the department.  Fletcher asked the commissioners if they 
remember him giving them a packet of information called “Philip Fletcher Notes.”  
Taylor answered in the affirmative.  Fletcher said the “notes” document much of what he 
is saying about the department and the plans for the department.  He said the notes are the 
only thing the Commission has received from him and asked if each commissioner read 
it.  Durgan and Taylor each said they read through it but did not read the document in its 
entirety.  Durgan said he glanced through the document as Fletcher was going through it 
with the Commission.  Taylor said such is exactly how he reviewed the document.  
Durgan said the commissioners returned the document to Fletcher as the Commission did 
not want to be accountable.  Taylor said the Commission did not want to be accountable 
for Fletcher’s confidential information contained in the document.  Fletcher said that was 
his only chance to give his side since he did not know, as none of the commissioners 
talked about it.  He said he wants the record to reflect the Commission reviewed about 10 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 7 of 12 



pages of the notes with him at the meeting in which it was presented, and then gave it 
back to him without reading the rest of the document.  He said he had one chance 
guessing what the Commission was talking about and the Commission turned it back to 
him without reading the whole thing. 
 
Linneweber said the commissioners do not owe any employee an explanation for any 
reason that they choose as long as they follow procedure.  Linneweber said the 
commissioners are entitled to split the department as proposed in stating they feel it is in 
the best interest of the county.  Fletcher told Linneweber he was talking to the 
commissioners and asked Linneweber if he feels the Commission needs legal advice.  
Linneweber said he does not answer to Fletcher and did not answer Fletcher’s question.  
Fletcher said Linneweber sure interferes with his department well enough.  
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Taylor said accusations Fletcher made against the county attorney have no place in the 
current meeting.  Fletcher said points documented in the notes he presented do have a 
place in the meeting because they specifically say, without attacking a person, how that 
person interfered with the operations, which is the point the Commission is talking about.  
Fletcher said he does not care what Linneweber says or what the Commission decides.  
He said he knows the Commission made the decision several days ago.  Fletcher said his 
comments were not a personal attack on the county attorney, as they were made within a 
context of the functioning of the department, and he is setting a record.  Fletcher said he 
told the commissioners the other day they are free to make whatever decisions they want 
as long as they are legal and fair. 
 
Taylor said Fletcher sent the Commission a confidential email the other day addressing 
how he thought the department should be divided up, so he does not think Fletcher was 
unaware of the context of the current meeting.  Fletcher said he sent the Commission a 
continuum of problems and challenges in his department and how he would dispose of 
challenges and his plan as part of his notes document.  He said he was not aware of the 
current meeting.  Taylor said he has an email from Fletcher in which Fletcher describes 
how he wants the departments and what functions he wants to retain.  Fletcher said that 
email was sent yesterday because he had a conversation with Linneweber and Malone in 
which those two individuals told him the current meeting was going to be about splitting 
the departments.   Fletcher said the Commission gave him 12 hours notice of what the 
current meeting would be about.  Taylor asked Fletcher if he knew what the current 
meeting was going to be about.  Fletcher said he did not know what the meeting would be 
about.  Taylor said the current meeting title states separating department functions, 
Malone and Linneweber told him such was what the Commission was planning on doing 
and he sent the Commission an email on how he thought the department should be 
divided, but Fletcher came to the current meeting and told the Commission he knew 
nothing of the content of the meeting.  
 
Ouellette asked if the Commission has a date when the physical office moves will occur.  
Fletcher said he and Taylor have talked about that.  Taylor said that will be done by the 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 8 of 12 



end of the weekend.  Taylor said he and Fletcher worked out the logistics and he and the 
maintenance man will work on the office moves. 
 
Fletcher said he was told and he has documentation that the secret meeting the 
Commission held had to do with office environment.  Durgan said he resents Fletcher 
saying anything about a secret meeting.  He said, in his case anyhow, there were never 
any secret meetings, everything was above board, there were open discussions and the 
Commission tried to be very transparent about the issue.  
 
Fletcher said the Commission needs to be careful on how it describes “planning,” as code 
enforcement is not considered planning by the American Planning Association.  Fletcher 
said he does all the planning for the county, and (Senior Planner Mike Inman) does code 
enforcement.  Fletcher said the Commission’s proposal would be taking planning from 
him and giving it to Inman to be a code enforcer and the planner.  Taylor said he cannot 
comment on that and details will be worked out with both Inman and Fletcher. 
 
@10:56:24 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 15, 2011 
 
8:00 A.M. – Montana Cowboy Hall of Fame Working Meeting – Community Room – 
Commissioner Durgan attended 
 
September 15, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects  
 
@8:35:14 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Raea 
Morris, administrative assistant; Jill Ouellette, HR; Ed Hillman, road; and Minutes Clerk 
John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence for September 13 included: 
 

• Memo email re. CountySilo public records access 
• Memo email re. Angel Line Board member recommendation 
• Memo email re. Fleshman Creek RFQ point person  
• Memo document re. $354.50 Jim Brown invoice 

 
Correspondence for September 14 included: 
 

• Memo document re. Diamond B gravel invoice 
• Memo email re. CountySilo scanner funds 
• Memo email re. Sept 21 RC&D Board meeting 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 9 of 12 



• Memo email re. Hazard Mitigation Plan final comments 
• Memo email re. Hamilton Road status 
• Memo email re. Mushrush exemption application staff explanation 
• Memo document re. RDO damaged grader repair bid of $96,640 
• Memo email re. MACo IRS cellular phone policy 
• Memo document re. Economic Development District $50,000 EDA investment 

grant 
• Memo email re. Earth Homes Minor Subdivision meeting 

 
Commissioner Malone reported on a September 13 MACo Healthcare Trust insurance 
meeting. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette said she sent Commissioner Taylor and County 
Attorney Linneweber an email about the nature of the HR Office and its location being 
conducive to maintaining employee privacy with personnel and confidential issues.  She 
said moving Commissioner Taylor from that office and housing another county employee 
could potentially compromise confidential employee issues addressed in her office. 
 
@9:16:38 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 15, 2011 
 
9:30 A.M. – Adopting/Signing of Resolution Updating Pay Scales for FY2012 – 
Commission Chambers – Canceled  
 
1:30 P.M. – Planning and Community Development Board – Community Room – 
Canceled by Community Development Director 
 
10:00 A.M. – Montana Association of Planners – Big Sky, MT – Commissioner Malone 
attended 
 
4:00 P.M. – 911 Communications – West Room 
 
4:00 P.M. – Library Board – Park County Library 
 
September 16, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@10:03:06 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Raea 
Morris, administrative assistant; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment 
made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 10 of 12 



Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo documents re. invoice from Bell and Associates 
• Memo email re. Arbor Drive status 
• Memo email re. Arch Park insurance 
• Memo email re. Secure Rural Schools hearing 
• Memo document re. DPHHS alcohol tax distribution 
• Memo email re. October 3 Willow Creek RAC meeting 
• Memo document re. CTA Engineering task orders and fees  

 
Commissioner Malone reported on a September 15 Montana Association of Planners 
meeting.  
 
@10:10:05 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 16, 2011 
 
1:00 P.M. – Solid Waste Board – Commissioners Chambers – Commissioners Malone and 
Taylor attended – Meeting minutes available in the Commission Office and at www.parkcounty.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 9/12/11 Page 11 of 12 



Week of 9/12/11 Page 12 of 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Randy Taylor, R.S. 
Chairman, Park County Commission  
Park County, Montana 
 
 
 
Denise Nelson 
Clerk & Recorder 
Park County, Montana 
 


